
 

 

  

GŴYS A RHAGLEN 
 
 

SUMMONS AND AGENDA 
 
 

ar gyfer 
 
 

for a 
 

 
CYFARFOD ARBENNIG 

 O GYNGOR SIR 
YNYS MÔN 

 
 

EXTRAORDINARY MEETING  
OF THE ISLE OF ANGLESEY 

COUNTY COUNCIL 
 
 

a gynhelir yn 
 
 

to be held at the 
 
 

SIAMBR Y CYNGOR 
SWYDDFA’R SIR 
LLANGEFNI 

COUNCIL CHAMBER 
COUNCIL OFFICES 

LLANGEFNI 
 
 

DYDD MAWRTH, 18 MEHEFIN 2013 TUESDAY, 18 JUNE 2013 

�am 10.30 o’r gloch� �at 10.30 am� 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 

 A G E N D A 
 
 

1    DECLARATION OF INTEREST   

 To receive any declaration of interest from any Member or Officer in respect of any 
item of business.  
 

2   TO RECEIVE ANY ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE CHAIRPERSON, LEADER 
OR THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE   

 

3    CHANGES TO THE COUNCIL'S CONSTITUTION - APPOINTMENT OF NON-
VOTING CO-OPTEES TO SCRUTINY COMMITTEES   

 To report that the Executive at its meeting on 10th June, 2013 had resolved as 
follows:- 
 
“To recommend to the County Council that it delegates to each Scrutiny Committee 
the discretion to appoint non-voting co-optees, for whatever period of time and 
terms each Scrutiny Committee considers appropriate, without having to obtain 
Council approval and that authority be given to officers to make any consequential 
amendments to the Constitution”. 
 
To submit the report of the Monitoring Officer as submitted to the Executive on 10th 
June, 2013.  
 

4    LOCAL GOVERNMENT BOUNDARY COMMISSION FOR WALES - COUNCIL 
SIZE POLICY CONSULTATION PAPER   

 (1) To submit the report of the Chief Executive. 
 

(2) To submit a copy of the Consultation Paper.  
 

5    EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   

 To consider adoption of the following:- 
 
“Under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, to exclude the press 
and public from the meeting during discussion on the following item on the grounds 
that it may involve the disclosure of exempt information as defined in Schedule 12A 
of the said Act and in the attached Public Interest Test”.   
 

6    WASTE COLLECTION VEHICLE PROCUREMENT   

 To report that the Executive at its meeting on 10th June, 2013 had resolved to 
recommend to the County Council as follows:- 
 
“That Option 2 purchasing new Resource Recovery Vehicles (RRVs) and using the 
existing 240 litre residual bins is the preferred option for the start of the second half 
of the 14 year contract. 
 
To agree that Biffa can proceed immediately to order new Resource Recovery, 
Waste Collection and Street Cleansing Vehicles to avoid additional costs of Euro 6 
chassis. 



 
 

  
To agree that the Finance Service discuss the viability of the Council funding the 
purchase of all new vehicles with Biffa and proceed with this funding, if it is 
advantageous to the Council and that sufficient guarantees are in place for the 
vehicles to remain Council property if the contractor were to experience financial 
difficulties. 
  
That officers continue to review collection options during the second half of the 14 
year contract with Biffa and provide the relevant Committees with further 
information on future systems to be considered and their costs, bearing in mind 
that a new procurement process will commence in 2019/20 for a new contract 
commencing in April 2021. 
  
That in view of the circumstances described within this Report and of the need of 
urgency the Committee pursuant to CPR 4.5.16.10 agree that this decision shall 
not be subject to the call-in procedure as this will seriously prejudice the Council’s 
interests”. 
 
(This item is reported to full Council for information because the item was exempt 
from call-in by reason of urgency). 
 
To submit the report of the Head of Highways and Waste Management as 
submitted to the Executive on 6th June, 2013.  
 



This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM NO.  

 

ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL 

Report to THE EXECUTIVE AND THE COUNTY COUNCIL 

Date 10 JUNE 2013 AND 18 JUNE 2013 

Subject APPOINTMENT OF NON VOTING CO-OPTEES TO  

SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 

Lead Officer(s) MONITORING OFFICER 

Contact Officer SCRUTINY MANAGER 

Nature and reason for reporting:  

Appointment of non voting co-optees to Scrutiny Committees. 

 

A – Introduction / Background / Issues 

A change that requires Executive consideration and Council approval to simplify the 

process of appointment of non voting co-optees to Scrutiny Committees. 

 

B - Considerations 

Appointment of non voting co-optees to Scrutiny Committees is encouraged by the 

Welsh Government in the local Government Measure 2011. 

 

 

 

C – Implications and Impacts  

1 

 

Finance / Section 151  

2 Legal / Monitoring Officer 

 

 

3 Human Resources 

 

 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



C – Implications and Impacts  

4 Property Services  

(see notes – separate  

document) 

 

 

5 Information and Communications 

Technology (ICT) 

 

 

6 Equality 

(see notes – separate  

document) 

 

 

7 Anti-poverty and Social 

(see notes – separate  

document) 

 

 

8 Communication 

(see notes – separate  

document) 

 

 

9 Consultation 

(see notes – separate  

document) 

 

Consultation with: 

 Head of Function – Legal and 

Administration/ Monitoring Officer 

 Head of Function- Resources /S151 

Officer 

10 Economic  

11 Environmental 

(see notes – separate  

document) 

 

Page 2



C – Implications and Impacts  

12 Crime and Disorder  

(see notes – separate  

document) 

 

13 Outcome Agreements  

 

 

 

CH - Summary 

In order to comply with the Welsh Government’s aim to encourage Scrutiny Committees 

to co-opt non voting members it is suggested that the Council delegates to each 

Scrutiny Committee the discretion to appoint non voting co-optees, for whatever period 

of time and terms each Scrutiny Committee considers appropriate, without having to 

obtain Council approval. 

 

D - Recommendation 

That the Council delegates to each Scrutiny Committee the discretion to appoint non 

voting co-optees, for whatever period of time and terms each Scrutiny Committee 

considers appropriate, without having to obtain Council approval. 

 

Name of author of report: Bev Symonds 

Job Title: Scrutiny Manager 

Date: 30 May 2013 

Appendix : 

Report on appointment of  non voting co-optees to  Scrutiny Committees 

 

Background papers 

 Statutory Guidance from the Local Government Measure 2011 dated June 2012 
 Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales Annual Report dated December 

2012. 

 

Page 3



 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT   
 
1.1  To seek approval for the Council to delegate  to each Scrutiny Committee the 

discretion to appoint  non voting co-optees, for whatever period of time and terms each 
Scrutiny Committee considers appropriate, without having to obtain Council approval. 
 
 

2.0 BACKGROUND TO VOTING AND NON VOTING CO-OPTED MEMBERS ON 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEES IN WALES  

 
 
2.1 VOTING CO-OPTED MEMBERS 
 
 
 Within the  provisions of paragraph 8 to schedule 1 to the Local Government Act  2000 

and the Parent Governor Representatives and Church Representatives ( Wales) 
Regulations 2001,  certain co-optees  are statutory   and automatically have voting 
rights  when a Scrutiny Committee deals with educational matters. The Independent 
Remuneration Panel for Wales has determined that  Councils  in Wales should pay 
such voting  co-opted members a fee of £198 (daily fee- more than 4 hours) and £99 
(half daily fee-less than 4 hours) but can decide on the maximum number of days for 
which co-opted members may be paid in any one year. 

 
 
2.2 The Crime and Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) Regulations 2009 and the Crime and 

Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) (Amendment) regulations 2010 deals with the co-
option of additional members to a Scrutiny Committee dealing with a crime and 
disorder matter. The co-option of additional members is at the discretion of the 
relevant Scrutiny Committee including whether any co-optee   should have voting 
rights. If the co-optee is given voting rights by the Committee then the Independent 
Remuneration Panel for Wales has determined that Councils in Wales pay such voting 
co-opteed members a fee of £198 (daily fee-more than 4 hours) and £99 (half daily 
fee-less than 4 hours) but can decide on the maximum number of days for which co-
opted members may be paid in any one year. 

 
 

 
 

ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

 

REPORT TO : 
 

THE EXECUTIVE AND COUNTY COUNCIL 

DATE: 
 

10 JUNE 2013 AND 18 JUNE 2013 

TITLE OF REPORT: 
 

APPOINTMENT OF  NON-VOTING CO-OPTEES TO  
SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 

LEAD OFFICER:  
 

MONITORING OFFICER 

CONTACT OFFICER: SCRUTINY MANAGER 

Page 4



 
 
 
2.3 NON VOTING CO-OPTED MEMBERS 
 
 

Apart from co-optees referred to in paragraph 2.1 and 2.2 of this report, all other co-
optees appointed to a Scrutiny Committee are non- voting and there is no prescribed 
fee payable by the Council other than claimable travel and subsistence allowance. The 
procedure for appointing such co-optees (contained in  the Scrutiny Procedure Rules 
of  the Council’s Constitution)  is that each Scrutiny Committee shall be entitled to 
recommend to Council the appointment of a number of people as non-voting co-
optees. 

 
 
3.0    APPOINTMENT OF NON VOTING CO-OPTEES TO SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 
 
3.1  The Local Government Measure 2011 introduced changes intended to strengthen the 

structures and working of local government in Wales and to ensure that local councils 
reach out to engage with all sectors of the communities they serve 

 
 
3.2 Under statutory guidance issued under the Local Government Measure 2011 the 

Welsh Government considers that including a broader range of specialists or 
community representatives or service users as non voting co-optees in scrutiny is 
advantageous as it enables elected members to send powerful messages about 
citizen centered services and partnership working through their own structures and 
practices.  

 
 
3.3 The precedent of having co-opted members on Committees is already well 

established. For example, on the Standards Committee ‘independent’ members shall 
be appointed in accordance with arrangements set out in the Standards Committee 
(Wales) Regulations 2001 and the Standards Committees (Wales) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2006. In addition there is a requirement, under the Local Government 
Measure 2011, that the membership of the Audit Committee includes one lay member. 
Both these Committees advertised in the press for lay independent members. 

 
 
3.4 In order to comply with the Welsh Government’s aim to encourage Scrutiny 

Committees to appoint non voting co-optees, and to simplify the process for appointing 
such non voting co-optees, it is considered beneficial that the Council delegates to 
each Scrutiny Committee the discretion to appoint non voting co-optees, for whatever 
period of time and terms each Scrutiny Committee considers appropriate, without 
having to obtain Council approval. This delegation of authority to Scrutiny Committee 
will enhance the flexibility of Scrutiny Committees to appoint non voting co-optees to 
deal with a specific review or task it has to undertake and make it more responsive to 
events. 

 
 

Page 5



3.5 If the Council agrees to the delegation of authority to the Scrutiny Committees to 
appoint non voting co-optees the Scrutiny Unit will thereafter discuss the matter with 
Scrutiny Committee Chairs prior to submitting any report to the Scrutiny Committees 
for the appointment of non voting co-optees.  

 
3.6 Each Scrutiny Committee holds six ordinary meeting in every municipal year but 

additional extra-ordinary meetings and Panel meetings may also be called.  
 
 
4.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
4.1 That the Council delegates to each Scrutiny Committee the discretion to appoint non 

voting co-optees, for whatever period of time and terms each Scrutiny Committee 
considers appropriate, without having to obtain Council approval. 

 

Report by: Scrutiny Manager                                                     Dated: 30 May 2013 

Page 6



  
 

 

ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

 

MEETING: 

 

 

COUNTY COUNCIL 

 

DATE: 

 

 

18 June 2013 

 

 

TITLE OF REPORT:  

 

Electoral Reviews:  Council Size Policy 

 

 

REPORT BY: 

 

 

Chief Executive 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 

 

 

To report on Boundary Commission 

proposals to undertake an electoral review 

of council size of principal areas in Wales 

 

 
1.0    Introduction 

 
1.1 The Local Government Boundary Commission for Wales (LGBCW) is required to carry out  

periodic  reviews of the electoral arrangements of principal areas in Wales. 
 
1.2 In May 2012, the LGBCW published a consultation paper setting out a preliminary views of how 

Council size may be determined as a precursor to an elected review.  As a result of 
representation received on the methodologies to be used, for determining  Council size, a 
further consultation paper has  been produced setting out the Commissions views and 
approach based on the method currently in place in Scotland with variations of geography, 
topography and  population density.  A copy of the consultation paper is enclosed. 

 

Proposed Methodology 
 
1.3   A number of factors are proposed for consideration including population density and the  

dispersal of population with a local authority area. 
 
1.4 The consultation paper proposes that authorities be placed in 4 categories based on 

urbanisation and population density.  As far as Ynys Môn is concerned, the Council would be 
placed in category 4 (more than 50% of population living outside towns with more than 10,000 
population and less than 2 persons per hectare in relation to population density). 

 
 1.5  This would give a Councillor to population ratio of 2,000 and, applying this methodology, the 

Councillor to population ratio would give a total of 35 Councillors for Ynys Môn. 
 

Constraints 

 
1.6  However, the consultation paper notes that any method for determining Council size may be 
       constrained by legislation and Ministerial Direction and an awareness of the impact of any  
       proposed change to the existing size of Councils. 
 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 7



  
 

 1.7   Ministerial Directions have previously stated: 
 

a) It is considered that a minimum  number of 30 councillors is required for the proper 
management of the affairs of a county or a county borough council; 

 
b) It is considered that, in order to minimize the risk of a county council or a county borough 

council becoming unwieldy and difficult to manage, a maximum number of 75 councillors is 
ordinarily required to the proper management of the affairs of a county or a county borough 
council. 

 
1.8   From the earlier consultation there appears to be a general acceptance of these matters. 
 
1.9  The impact that a significant change may have on the running of a council if it applied as a 

result of a single electoral review has also been considered by the Commission.  A constraint 
has therefore been applied so that, for each review, the number of councillors will not vary by 
more than 10% of current councillor numbers. However,  at the request of the principal 
council concerned the Commission will consider exceeding its 10% variance limit in moving 
towards the size of council determined by the model. 

 
2.0  Overall as far as Ynys Môn is concerned and taking into account these constraints, the number 

of councillors  proposed would increase to 33. 
 

The consultation paper seeks views on:- 
 

Ø Categorization parameters (ensuring that only significant changes in population density and 
urbanization would change a local authority’s category)  [section 2 of the consultation paper]; 

 
Ø Councillor to population ratio (whether the councillor to population ratios are appropriate for 

each category) [section 2 of the consultation paper]; 
 

Ø Maximum and minimum Council size – views on Ministerial Directions [section 3 of the 
consultation report]; 
 

Ø Review cap – limitations on the amount of change of councillor numbers [section 3 of the 
report]. 
 

 
2.1   Views on these proposals are requested by 19

th
 June 2013. 

 
  

 

Recommendation 
 

The Council is requested to formulate its response to the issues raised in the consultation paper and  
authorise the Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader to respond accordingly. 

 
  

 
 
 

Page 8



 
T! Hastings 

 
Hastings House 

Llys Ffitsalan Fitzalan Court 
Caerdydd Cardiff 
CF24 0BL CF24 0BL 

E-bost:

 

E-mail:
cflll.cymru@cymru.gsi.gov.uk ! (029) 2046 4819 lgbc.wales@wales.gsi.gov.uk
www.cflll-cymru.gov.uk Ffacs/Fax (029) 2046 4823 www.lgbc-wales.gov.uk

 
 
 
 

 
27 Mawrth, 2013. 

 

 
 
Annwyl Syr / Madam, 
 

Mae’n bleser gennyf gyflwyno ‘Arolygon Etholiadol: Papur Ymgynghori ar Bolisi Maint 

Cynghorau’ y Comisiwn i chi ei ystyried. 

 

Mae’r Comisiwn wedi gweithio’n galed gydag Uned Ddata CLlLC i greu methodoleg 

gadarn, dryloyw a theg, yn seiliedig ar ddata, ar gyfer cyfrifo’r nifer briodol o gynghorwyr 

ar gyfer pob awdurdod lleol yng Nghymru. 

 

Edrychwn ymlaen at glywed eich barn.  Nodwch y bydd y cyfnod ymgynghori'n rhedeg 
tan 19 Mehefin 2013. 
 

Yr eiddoch yn gywir, 

 

Owen Watkin OBE DL 

Cadeirydd, Comisiwn Ffiniau Llywodraeth Leol i Gymru 

 
 
 

________________________________________________________________________________________________
Mae’r Comisiwn yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg 

The Commission welcomes correspondence in English or WelshPage 9



 
T! Hastings 

 
Hastings House 

Llys Ffitsalan Fitzalan Court 
Caerdydd Cardiff 
CF24 0BL CF24 0BL 

E-bost:

 

E-mail:
cflll.cymru@cymru.gsi.gov.uk ! (029) 2046 4819 lgbc.wales@wales.gsi.gov.uk
www.cflll-cymru.gov.uk Ffacs/Fax (029) 2046 4823 www.lgbc-wales.gov.uk

 
 
 
 

 
27th March, 2013. 

 

 
 
Dear Sir / Madam, 
 

I am pleased to be writing to you to present the Commission’s ‘Electoral Reviews: 

Council Size Policy Consultation Paper’ for your consideration. 

 

The Commission has worked hard with the WLGA Data Unit to create a robust, 

transparent, data driven and fair methodology for calculating the appropriate number of 

councillors for each local authority in Wales. 

 

We look forward to receiving your views. Please note that the consultation period runs 

until 19 June 2013. 

 

Yours faithfully, 

 

Owen Watkin OBE DL 

Chair, Local Government Boundary Commission for Wales 

 

 
 
 

________________________________________________________________________________________________
Mae’r Comisiwn yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg 

The Commission welcomes correspondence in English or WelshPage 10



!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

Electoral Reviews:
Council Size Policy 
Consultation Paper 

27 March 2013 
Consultation closes on 19 June 
2013

Page 11



1

Electoral Reviews: Council Size Policy Consultation Paper 

March 2013 

1. Introduction 

1.1 The Local Government Boundary Commission for Wales is required to carry out periodic 
reviews of the electoral arrangements of principal areas in Wales. The way the 
Commission conducts an electoral review is defined by legislation and by Directions 
issued by the Welsh Government. 

1.2 The Commission published its ‘Electoral reviews: policy and practice’ paper on 12 March 
2012. That paper did not include the Commission’s approach to council size.  
Accordingly, in May 2012, we produced a consultation paper setting out a preliminary 
view of how council size may be determined as a precursor to an electoral review.

1.3 At the end of the initial consultation period we had received responses from the majority 
of principal councils, the Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA), political parties 
and individuals, including former councillors. The general response was in favour of an 
approach based on the identification of the number of councillors that would be 
appropriate to ensure the provision of effective and convenient local government for 
authorities. The specific methodology proposed by the paper was, however, not 
generally supported. It was clear that there were some concerns about the suggested 
banding approach. The view was expressed that the methodology used and justification 
for establishing council sizes should be based upon wider factors than socio-
geographical characteristics alone, and may need to include population density factors. 
There was also the view that the ratios of elector per councillor adopted in the 
consultation paper need to be justified. 

1.4 Representatives of the Commission met with representatives of the WLGA in July 2012 
to discuss the outcome of the consultation. At the meeting it was agreed that
Commission would work with the Local Government Data Unit ~ Wales to consider 
further the methodology used for determining council size and to investigate alternative 
data sets and methodologies. Further meetings were held with the WLGA and the Data 
Unit and, following detailed analysis work by the Data Unit, the Commission were able to 
consider alternative methodologies that utilised data that was both current and readily 
available. We considered methodologies which variously took account of electorate 
numbers, population size and measures of population density and urbanisation. We 
have arrived at a preferred methodology that is broadly based on the method currently in 
place in Scotland. 

1.5 This consultation paper sets out the Commission’s further views and approach to how it 
believes council size should be determined, based on its experience, expertise and 
knowledge of local government. The Commission welcomes views from all interested 
parties, local authorities and individuals on this proposed approach. All views will be 
taken into account before the Commission comes to its final determination on how 
council size should be considered as part of an electoral review.  

1.6 Respondents are welcome to comment on any aspect of this paper.  However, it would 
be particularly useful if the specific questions detailed at Appendix A are addressed.  
Respondents are requested to send their views to the LGBCW by 19 June 2013.  All 
comments should be emailed to lgbc.wales@wales.gsi.gov.uk or by post to the 
Commission’s new address at;

Page 12



2

Chief Executive 
Local Government Boundary Commission for Wales
Hastings House
Fitzalan Court
Cardiff
CF24 0BL 

Page 13



3

2. Proposed methodology 

2.1 In considering a methodology for determining the size of councils the Commission has 
adopted the principle that any approach to modelling councillor numbers should be 
objective, transparent and underpinned by a robust methodology. In arriving at a 
preferred methodology the Commission took account of the method currently in place in 
Scotland which has been an accepted and tested approach to adjudicating council size 
on Local Authorities with variations of geography, topography and population distribution. 
The Commission and the Data Unit have worked with the Local Government Boundary 
Commission for Scotland to better understand how their current approach was 
developed and have benefitted from a comparable model for Wales. 

2.2 The method proposed in this paper uses  information relating to the population 
distribution within authorities enabling a conclusion to be drawn on the relative urban and 
or rural nature of their areas, in demographic terms. Using the data to then categorise 
the authorities provides a transparent and robust approach which will provide a 
sustainable method for future allocation. It ensures that authorities with similar 
characteristics are being treated in the same way. The parameters used to determine the 
categories are urbanisation (percentage of the population living outside of settlements 
with a population of more than 10,000) and population density (number of persons per 
hectare). The categories have been determined by a combination of looking at 
appropriate groupings in the data and as determined by appropriate patterns of 
population distribution within local authority areas. 

2.3 The first factor considered is population density. The chart below shows the distribution 
across Wales of the population density. The data used is the 2011 Mid Year Estimates1

of population and the associated 2011 population densities. The data suggests there are 
4 groups of local authorities in Wales in terms of population density (from top to bottom):
i. Those greater than or equal to 10 (Cardiff) 
ii. Those greater than or equal to 4.5 but less than 10 (Newport to Merthyr Tydfil) 
iii. Those greater than or equal to 2 but less than 4.5 (The Vale of Glamorgan to 

Wrexham)
iv. Those less than 2 (Denbighshire to Powys) 

Population density

0 5 10 15 20 25 30

Powys

Ceredigion

Gwynedd

Pembrokeshire

Carmarthenshire

Isle of Anglesey

Conwy

Monmouthshire

Denbighshire

Wrexham

Neath Port Talbot

Flintshire

The Vale of Glamorgan

Merthyr Tydfil

Rhondda Cynon Taf

Bridgend

Swansea

Blaenau Gwent

Caerphilly

Torfaen

Newport

Cardiff

Density (persons per hectare)

(2.0) (4.5) (10)

Page 14



4

2.5 The second factor to consider is ‘urbanisation’ or the percentage of population living 
outside settlements with a population over 10,000. This factor distinguishes those 
authorities that have a preponderance of population that lives in larger communities, 
town or urban settlements. The chart below shows the distribution across Wales of the 
percentage of the population living outside of settlements with a population of more than 
10,000.  As there is no clear indicative split in the data, the most appropriate 
demarcation point consistent with transparency is 50%.

Percentage of the population living outside settlements >10k

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100

Cardiff

Torfaen

Blaenau Gwent

Swansea

Newport

The Vale of Glamorgan

Merthyr Tydfil

Caerphilly

Neath Port Talbot

Rhondda Cynon Taf

Wrexham

Bridgend

Flintshire

Conwy

Denbighshire

Monmouthshire

Carmarthenshire

Ceredigion

Pembrokeshire

Isle of Anglesey

Gwynedd

Powys

(50%)

2.6 It was considered that the Commission could divide Wales’ Local Authorities by the four 
categories identified purely on the population density. However, the Commission 
believes that there is merit in establishing a robust model which reflects both population 
density and the dispersal of population within a local authority area and can continue and 
adapt to changes to Wales’ local authorities population in the future. Thus, the model
presented includes both sets of factors even though, in this first instance, it does not
impact on a number of Local Authorities. 

2.7 To take account of the circumstances in Wales and ensuring that only significant 
changes in population density would change a local authority’s category a set categories 
of urbanisation and population density are proposed as follows: 

- Where 50% or more of the population live outside  settlements larger  than 10,000 
persons ; and, 

- Where the population density is greater than or equal to 10 persons per hectare, is 
greater than or equal to 4.5 persons per hectare but less than 10 persons per 
hectare, is greater than or equal to 2 persons per hectare but less than 4.5 persons 
per hectare, is less than 2 persons per hectare. 

Page 15



5

2.8 Using the values from the charts above gives the categorisation parameters shown in 
Table 1.

Table 1: Categorisation parameters 

Category 

Urban nature 
(% of population 
living outside of 
towns with more 
than 10,000 
population)

Population density 
(persons per hectare) 

1 Less than 50% AND Greater than or equal to 
10

2 Less than 50% AND Greater than or equal to 
4.5

3 More than 50% AND/OR Less than 4.5 

4 More than 50% AND Less than 2 

2.9 Using this methodology the authorities are categorised as shown in Table 2.

Table 2: Category allocation 

Authority Category

Blaenau Gwent 2
Bridgend 2
Caerphilly 2
Cardiff 1
Carmarthenshire 4
Ceredigion 4
Conwy 3
Denbighshire 4
Flintshire 3
Gwynedd 4
Isle of Anglesey 4
Merthyr Tydfil 2
Monmouthshire 4
Neath Port Talbot 3
Newport 2
Pembrokeshire 4
Powys 4
Rhondda Cynon Taf 2
Swansea 2
The Vale of Glamorgan 3
Torfaen 2
Wrexham 3

2.10 Once the authorities are allocated to a category then a ratio of councillors to population 
is applied to each authority within the category. This approach takes account of the size 
of the overall population, whilst continuing to ensure that authorities with similar 
characteristics are treated the same. 

2.11 The population ratios for the categories are determined as a set and having regard for 
the categories determined by urbanisation and population density. A two fold change 
between the top and bottom categories is proposed in Wales to reflect the slightly 
smaller range in urbanisation and population density. The current average ratio for 

Page 16



6

category 4 councils is approximately 1:2,000 and so it was considered appropriate to 
apply this ratio to this category. The change in ratios between categories 4 and 3 and 
between categories 3 and 2 is small at 500 persons per councillor. This is to reflect the 
gradual change in the nature of categories and is the same as in the Scottish 
methodology. There is a greater change of 1,000 between the top two categories 
reflecting the difference in their nature. The proposed ratios are shown in Table 3.

Table 3: Councillor to population ratios 

Category Ratio (1: ) 

1 4,000

2 3,000

3 2,500

4 2,000

2.12 The councillor to population ratio for each category is used to determine the number of 
councillors as shown in Table 4.

Table 4: Categorisation and councillor allocation 

Category Authority Population
Number of 
Councillors

1 Cardiff      345,442 86

Blaenau Gwent        69,812 23

Bridgend      139,410 46

Caerphilly        78,782 60

Merthyr Tydfil        58,851 20

Newport      145,785 49

Rhondda Cynon Taf      234,373 78

Swansea      238,691 80

2

Torfaen        91,190 30

Conwy      115,326 46

Flintshire      152,666 61

Neath Port Talbot      139,880 56

The Vale of Glamorgan 126,679 51

3

Wrexham      135,070 54

Carmarthenshire      183,961 92

Ceredigion        75,293 38

Denbighshire        93,919 47

Gwynedd      121,523 61

Isle of Anglesey        69,913 35

Monmouthshire        91,508 46

Pembrokeshire      122,613 61

4

Powys      133,071 67

Wales 3,063,758 1,187

Page 17



7

3. Constraints 

3.1 As noted above, when considering a methodology for determining the size of councils 
the Commission adopted the principle that any approach to modelling councillor 
numbers should be objective, transparent and underpinned by a robust methodology. It 
is understood however that any method for determining council size may be constrained 
by legislation and Ministerial Directions and an awareness of the impact of any proposed 
change to the existing size of councils.

3.2 In respect of council size the Ministerial Directions in respect of electoral reviews have 
previously stated: 

(a) It is considered that a minimum number of 30 councillors is required for the proper 
management of the affairs of a county or a county borough council; 

(b) It is considered that, in order to minimise the risk of a county council or a county 
borough council becoming unwieldy and difficult to manage, a maximum number of 
75 councillors is ordinarily required for the proper management of the affairs of a 
county or a county borough council. 

  From our earlier consultation there appears to be a general acceptance of these maxima 
and minima and so we have therefore accepted these as constraints to the methodology. 

3.3 The impact that a significant change may have on the running of a council if it applied as 
a result of a single electoral review has also been considered. A constraint has therefore 
been applied so that, for each review, the number of councillors will not vary by more 
than 10%. At the request of the principal council concerned the Commission will consider 
exceeding its 10% variance limit in moving towards the size of council determined by the 
model.

3.5 In order to ensure that the process is clear and fair, the constraints on maximum or 
minimum councillor numbers or on levels of change have been applied at the end of the 
process.

Page 18



8

4. Applied Model 

4.1 The councillor allocation determined by the methodology (at Section 2 above) is then 
subject to the constraints (at Section 3 above). Table 5 shows the existing number of 
councillors and gives the allocated number of councillors before and after constraints. 

Table 5: Categorisation and councillor allocation before and after constraints 

Number of councillors 
Category Authority Existing

(2012)
Before
constraints

After
constraints

1 Cardiff 75 86 75

Blaenau Gwent 42 23 38

Bridgend 54 46 49

Caerphilly 73 60 66

Merthyr Tydfil 33 20 30

Newport 50 49 49

Rhondda Cynon Taf 75 78 75

Swansea 72 80 75

2

Torfaen 44 30 40

Conwy 59 46 53

Flintshire 70 61 63

Neath Port Talbot 64 56 58

The Vale of Glamorgan 47 51 51

3

Wrexham 52 54 54

Carmarthenshire 74 92 75

Ceredigion 42 38 38

Denbighshire 47 47 47

Gwynedd 75 61 67

Isle of Anglesey 30 35 33

Monmouthshire 43 46 46

Pembrokeshire 60 61 61

4

Powys 73 67 67

Wales 1,254 1,187 1,210

4.2 The proposed methodology gives a transparent, data driven and future proof method for 
calculating the appropriate number of councillors in each local authority and Wales as a 
whole. In some authorities, the councillor numbers obtained from the proposed method 
show significant change from their current numbers. The constraints that are 
subsequently applied ensure that the transition to this system is smooth and fair. 

Endnotes
1 The Commission has not used the 2011 Census data as the 2011 Mid Year Estimates were 
released in September 2012 and based on the 2011 Census. They are a consistent series of 
population statistics that are provided for the 30 June each year. The Census is only conducted 
once every 10 years and is on a different date. 

Page 19



Appendix A 

9

Consultation Questions 

Proposed Methodology 
Categorisation Parameters (Table 1)

To take account of the circumstances in Wales and ensuring that only significant changes in 
population density and urbanisation would change a local authority’s category we need to set 
categories of urbanisation and population density of: 

- Where 50% or more of the population that live outside settlements larger than 10,000 
persons ; and, 

- Where the population density is greater than or equal to 10 persons per hectare, is 
greater than or equal to 4.5 persons per hectare but less than 10 persons per 
hectare, is greater than or equal to 2 persons per hectare but less than 4.5 persons 
per hectare, is less than 2 persons per hectare. 

Q 1 Do you believe that the parameter of 50% of the population that live outside settlements 
larger than 10,000 persons is appropriate for Wales?

Q 2 Do you believe that the parameters of 2, 4.5 and 10 persons per hectare for population 
density are appropriate for Wales? 

Councillor to Population Ratios (Table 3)

The ratios for the categories are determined as a set and having regard for the categories 
determined by urbanisation and population density. A two fold change between the top and 
bottom categories is proposed in Wales to reflect the range in urbanisation and population 
density. The current average ratio for category 4 councils is 1:2,000 and so it was considered 
appropriate to apply this ratio to this category. The change in ratios between categories 4 and 3 
and between categories 3 and 2 is small at 500 persons per councillor. This is to reflect the 
gradual change in the nature of categories. There is a greater change of 1,000 between the top 
two categories reflecting the difference in their nature.

Q 3 Do you believe that the councillor to population ratios are appropriate for each category?

Constraints
Maximum and Minimum Council Sizes

In respect of council size the Ministerial Directions in respect of electoral reviews have 
previously stated: 

(a) It is considered that a minimum number of 30 councillors is required for the proper 
management of the affairs of a county or a county borough council; 

(b) It is considered that, in order to minimise the risk of a county council or a county borough 
council becoming unwieldy and difficult to manage, a maximum number of 75 councillors is 
ordinarily required for the proper management of the affairs of a county or a county borough 
council.

From our earlier consultation there appears to be a general acceptance of these maxima and 
minima, so we have accepted these constraints to the methodology, however, before this policy 
is enacted it is important that this again be tested. 

Page 20



10

Q 4 Do you consider it appropriate that a minimum number of 30 councillors is required for the 
proper management of the affairs of a county or a county borough council?

Q 5 Do you consider it appropriate that a maximum number of 75 councillors before a county 
or a county borough council becomes unwieldy and difficult to manage?

Review cap

In order to minimise the impact that a significant change in the number of members may have 
on the running of a council, the proposed methodology suggests that for each review, the 
number of councillors will not vary by more than 10%. It is noted that for some authorities it may 
require more than one review to achieve the appropriate number of members. At the request of 
the principal council concerned the Commission will consider exceeding its 10% variance limit 
in moving towards the size of council determined by the model. 

Q 6 Do you consider it appropriate to cap the amount of change of councillor numbers as a 
result of a review? 

Q 7 What percentage level of change do you think is appropriate to be used as a cap at each 
review?

Q 8 Should the Commission be able to not adhere to the review cap if specifically requested to 
do so by a Local Authority and when such a change does not vary from the model? 

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



�

������������	
����
� �������
�

��������		�
��
�
�		�
���������������������

�
WASTE COLLECTION VEHICLE PROCUREMENT�����������������������������������

�
�

�
�

�
��������� �!"� ������������#�$���%�#�$����������������������&$'(�%��)����''���(*+$'���&,���$(���-)�
�������., /"� ���������.,��#�$�����&�#�&$�����������������0,�'!(���)���$0�(��$1��%2�%&��0&���-)�
�

�
��������3��4�������

�

���� *%�� �!''� *� 0*,$�''� +�&,� ''�&��(!�
$,��+*''� 
� �,���� 5/� �� .!6(50� 5%&���/&� 5%�
'5/0($/!����/7��
�
85'� $�/� !%�,*+� %�+5'� �����&,�'5�� 59��
�+�/�%��&,�0�/�(!�/6+�5�(�59��'��%*''5+�:�
�
�
������ ��� �	� 
�	
	���� ��
���� �	� ���� �
����
�	������	���������������������������	����	�����
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�� 6!''� *� 0*,$�''� +5&,� 6�5'5$� '�&��(!� *+� 
�
�,��.!6(50�5%&���/&�5%�%$&�'5/0($/5%��5/7��
�
�
�+*6$'��&,���/%�0,$(�/�%/5&51��*%�/�5(5�'5�����
�$/&�!� 0$%&��0&�!� 0�/�(!� /6+�5�(� �� 0,$/&�!�
���5((����,*%�$�6�*'�*%�*�'*�$'$(:�
�
�	������
���� ���������� ���	��
��	�� �
���� 	��
��������
�����������	���
���
���
�����	������	��

���	������	�������������
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
������������� ��� �����6!''�*�0*,$�''�+�&,���'+9���5&,�5�'�$�6+*/�2+*�%�
((�5�%�;�6!''�*�
0*,$�''�+�&,�''�&��(!9��+*6$'��&,:���<;���'5(=+0,�*���5�5�!��2,��&,%�/$(>�
������� ��!�� � � �� � �,��.!6(50� 5%&���/&� 5%�2�5%&�5%5%�� &,���?�2.&5$%�$!&+�5�,/
'$�/�%$&�
$!&+�5�,;�&,��.!6(50�5%&���/&�5%�'5/0($/5%��&,��5%�$�2�&5$%:���<;���'�(�&���/��..�$.�5�&�>�
�

Agenda Item 6

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 25

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Changes to the Council's Constitution - Appointment of Non-Voting Co-optees to Scrutiny Committees
	4 Local Government Boundary Commission for Wales - Council Size Policy Consultation Paper
	Local Government Boundary Commission for Wales - Council Size Policy Consultation Paper (2)

	6 Waste Collection Vehicle Procurement
	Waste Collection Vehicle Procurement


